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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

"Magnolia Plantation" is located a short distance west 
of the Sandy Hook Road, about 1/2 mile south of Garret's Mill 
in Washington County, Maryland. It is situated on an area 
of level ground at the foot of Elk Ridge and faces east.

The structure is a two-story, five-bay brick dwelling 
with white trim. A one-and-one-half story, three-bay 
brick addition extends to the rear or west of the house.

Set on finely coursed local fieldstone foundations, the 
walls are concealed by grey artificial brick siding. The 
type of bonding used in the wall construction could not 
be observed.

The windows appear to have been spaced evenly in the 
front elevation of the house. The openings are of uniform 
size and contain six over six light double hung sashes held 
within narrow frames. At the rear of the house, windows 
are present only at the first story level where they have 
been boarded with plywood. It is possible that evidence 
of other openings in the west elevation may be concealed 
under the siding.

The main entrance is located in the center bay of the 
facade. The door framing and trim are quite elaborate for 
Washington County and include a broad eight light transom 
and sidelights. Wide double doors with four panels each 
have decorative oval medallions. Doric style colonnettes 
flank the doors. Below the sidelights are panels carrying 
the oval trim. Matching panels also ornament the jambs. 
Other entrances, very simple in appearance, are located 
at the rear of the main section in the first and second 
story levels and in the north and south walls of the addition

A three-bay, one-story Victorian period entrance 
porch is present at the front elevation. It is supported 
by square posts with carved brackets. The porch is to be 
removed by the present owners. Apparently, a two-story 
porch was present at one time at the rear elevation. All 
that remains of this structure is a section of overhanging 
roof held by diagonal supports.

The roof is covered with sheet metal. It terminates 
at the gables with a plain barge board set against the end 
walls of the house. The cornice work consists of rather 
elaborate bands of molding over the eaves boxing. Wide 
brick chimneys are present inside each gable end. A small 
brick flue rises from inside the end of the el.

Most of the original woodwork appears to have been 
retained inside the house. The main entrance opens into a 
wide stair hall. The stair is open and spirals to the 
attic. A decorated plaster medallion is set into the ceiling 
of the entrance hall. Fireplace mantels with colonnettes are 
present in the main rooms.

The house is in fair to good condition and is to be 
restored by the present owners.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The area of significance of this house is its architec­ 
ture. It is also important for its association with the Bote- 
ler family, prominent early residents of Washington County.

Architecturally, the house is worthy of note as a fine 
example of Washington County's brick architecture of the 
first half of the nineteenth century. With somewhat more 
elaborate decorative detail in wood than is usually found 
in Washington County, Magnolia Plantation stands out 
as one of the finer houses of its period in the area. 
(A companion house to this structure with similar exterior 
decorative woodwork is located near Brownsville several 
miles to the north). The house shows mixing of stylistic 
influences from the late federal and early Greek Revival 
periods. The usual time periods associated with these styles, 
however, cannot be applied to houses in Western Maryland 
where a time lag in building styles can be observed. The 
appearance of this house would suggest that it may have been 
built during the second quarter of the nineteenth century, 
probably circa 1835.

The property was owned by the Boteler Family until 1853 
when the farm, containing 189 acres and 73 perches, was sold 
to Christian Barr, a neighboring property owner for $6,630. 
The property was bought from the estate of Thomas Boteler, 
who died in 1834. Thomas Boteler acquired a large amount 
of land through various transactions in the late eighteenth 
and early nineteenth century.

The Boteler family were prominent early residents of 
southern Washington County. According to Williams' History 
of Western Maryland, the first white settler in the Brownsville 
area was Henry Boteler, who came from St. Mary's County. 
The Botelers were of Norman origin, traveling to England 
with William the Conqueror in 1066. The family is listed in 
Burke's Landed Gentry of England. Thomas Boteler who 
owned this property was a son of Henry Boteler.

When the Magnolia Plantation property was sold in 1836 
from Thomas Boteler's estate to Washington and Bartholomew 
(Barton) Boteler, the deed excepts "one half acre for the 
graveyard."
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Magnolia Plantation

7. DESCRIPTION, continued

Several modern outbuildings and a barn are located 
nearby.

A short distance north of the house is a private cemetery 
enclosed behind a stone wall.

Grave markers in the cemetery date from the very early 
nineteenth century to early twentieth century. A number 
of people with the name of Boteler are buried there.

The property contains 185.70 acres and is known as 
"Magno1i a Pian tat i on."

Addendum 13 March 1975

The Victorian period entrance porch on the front of Magnolia 
Plantation as described in #7 has been removed since this form 
was written. A new porch of a simpler and more compatible style 
was constructed by the owner. Three bays wide and one story in 
height, it has Doric columns which match the Doric style colon- 
nettes flanking the entrance. It sits on the masonry footings 
of the old porch, but has a new wood floor.

Restoration of the house is planned by the owners.
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